Date: 2<sup>nd</sup> May 2025

#### **NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING**

In accordance with Schedule 1 of the Local Government Act 1985, Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Port St Mary Commissioners will be held in the Boardroom at Port St Mary Town Hall on **Wednesday 7<sup>th</sup> May 2025 at 7.00 p.m.** 

Only business of a formal nature as defined in the Agenda for the meeting which is set out below, may be discussed as defined in Port St Mary Commissioners Standing Orders governed by Section 27 of the Local Government Act 1985 [as amended by Section 8 Local Government Act 2006]. All Commissioners are urged to attend and bring with them their copy of Standing Orders.

Hayley Kinvig Clerk

## PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS AGM AGENDA WEDNESDAY 7<sup>th</sup> MAY 2025 7 pm

1.	Apo	logies	for	absence

- 2. Minutes of AGM 22<sup>nd</sup> May 2024 for noting
- 3. Nominations for Annual or other Statutory Appointments:
- 3.1 Chairman
- 3.2 Vice Chairman
- 4. Appointments to other Statutory Boards (3 year term):
- 4.1 Southern Sheltered Housing Joint Board
- 4.2 Southern Civic Amenity Site Board
- 4.3 Southern Swimming Pool
- 5. To appoint annual representatives on the following:
- 5.1 IoM Municipal Association
- 5.2 Rushen Emergency Ambulance Committee
- 5.3 Southern Authorities Health Care Committee
- 5.4 Port St Mary & District Allotments Committee
- 6. Policy Matters:
- 6.1 Attendance Allowances for information
- 6.2 Members Travel Allowances for information
- 6.3 Standing Orders on Meetings for review
- 6.4 Standing Orders on Contracts for review
- 6.5 Bank Mandates for approval if amendments are required
- 6.6 Board Mission Statement for review
- 7. Reports
- 7.1 Suspension of Standing Orders Report for approval
- 7.2 Attendance Report for approval
- 8. Any Other Business by permission of the Chairman.

#### **PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS**

#### **MEMBERS' ATTENDANCE ALLOWANCES ORDER**

Local Government (Members' Attendance Allowances) Order 2013

Article 1

Statutory Document No. 0371/13



Local Government Act 1985

#### LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MEMBERS' ATTENDANCE ALLOWANCES) ORDER 2013

Approved by Tynwald: Coming into Operation:

19 November 2013

1 April 2014

The Department of Infrastructure makes the following Order under paragraph 4(1)(a) and (b) of Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1985.

#### 1 Title

This Order is the Local Government (Members' Attendance Allowances) Order 2013.

#### 2 Commencement

If approved by Tynwald, this Order comes into operation on 1 April 2014<sup>1</sup>.

#### 3 Interpretation

In this Order

"Act" means the Local Government Act 1985;

"daytime" means any 4 hour period between 8.00am and 1.00pm or 1.00pm and 6.00pm; and

"evening" means any 4 hour period between 6.00pm and midnight.

#### 4 Attendance Allowances

- (1) The amount of attendance allowance payable under paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 2 to the Act is
  - (a) £7.50 per hour or part thereof for an evening session up to a maximum of £30.00 per session; or
  - (b) £12.50 per hour or part thereof for a daytime session up to a maximum of £50.00 per session.

 $<sup>^{\</sup>rm 1}$  Tynwald approval is required by paragraph 4(2) of Schedule 2 to the Act



SD No.0371/13

Page 1

- (2) The maximum allowances payable by virtue of paragraph 2(3) of Schedule 2 of the Act within a financial year is
  - (a) £3,600 for attendance only at evening sessions; or
  - (b) £6,000 for attendance only at daytime sessions or at both daytime and evening sessions.

#### 5 Revocation

The Local Authority Members (Attendance Allowances) Order 2006<sup>2</sup> is revoked.

MADE: 25<sup>TH</sup> OCTOBER 2013

**D C CRETNEY** *Minister for Infrastructure* 

2	SI	)	6	6/	n	6

Page 2 SD No.0371/13



#### PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS

#### **MEMBERS' TRAVEL ALLOWANCES ORDER**

Local Authority Members (Travelling Allowances) Order 2023

Article 1

Statutory Document No. 2023/0164



Local Government Act 1985

## LOCAL AUTHORITY MEMBERS (TRAVELLING ALLOWANCES) ORDER 2023<sup>1</sup>

Approved by Tynwald: 19 July 2023 Coming into operation: 1 April 2024

The Department of Infrastructure makes the following Order under paragraph 4(1)(c) of Schedule 2 to the Local Government Act 1985.

#### 1 Title

This Order is Local Authority Members (Travelling Allowances) Order 2023.

#### 2 Commencement

If approved by Tynwald, this Order comes into operation on 1 April 2024.

#### 3 Interpretation

In this Order -

"the Act" means the Local Government Act 1985;

"motor car" and "motor cycle" have the same meaning as section 65 of the Road Traffic Act 1985;

"public passenger vehicle" has the same meaning as in section 63 of the Road Transport Act 2001; and

"railway" has the same meaning as in section 30 of the Isle of Man Passenger Transport Act 1982.

#### 4 Travelling Allowances

The following travelling allowances are prescribed for the purposes of paragraph 3 of Schedule 2 to the Act

- (a) where the member uses
  - (i) a public passenger vehicle; or
  - (ii) the railway,



SD No.2023/0164

Page 1

for the purpose of undertaking an approved duty, the cost actually and reasonably incurred in the use of such means of transport; and

(b) where the member uses a motor car or motor cycle for the purpose of undertaking an approved duty, the amount specified in the Schedule calculated on the mileage actually and reasonably travelled for that purpose.

#### 5 Revocation

The Local Authority Members (Travelling Allowances) Order  $2000^{\rm I}$  is revoked.

MADE 15 MAY 2023

1	SD	726/00.

Page 2

SD No.2023/0164



#### **SCHEDULE**

[Article 4(b)]

#### MILEAGE RATES (PENCE PER MILE)

Within a 12 month period commencing 1 April				
	First 6,000 miles	Over 6,000 miles		
Motor car	57.0	39.0		
Motor cycle	30.0	20.0		

For each eligible passenger, an additional allowance of 5 pence per mile may be claimed by the member sharing his or her own motor car or motor cycle with the eligible passenger.





# PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS STANDING ORDERS FOR THE REGULATION AND OBSERVANCE OF PROCEDURE AND BUSINESS WITH RESPECT TO MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY AND ITS COMMITTEES

#### WITH EFFECT FROM 25<sup>TH</sup> SEPTEMBER 2024

Attention is drawn to Standing Order 26 regarding improper conduct and to the need for members to be aware that they are NOT protected by parliamentary privilege when speaking in public at meetings of the Authority.

## PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS STANDING ORDERS MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY AND ITS COMMITTEES

In exercise of the powers conferred on the Port St Mary Commissioners (the "Authority") by Section 27(1) of the Local Government Act 1985, and of all other powers enabling it in that behalf, the following Standing Orders are hereby made:

#### 1. MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY

- 1.1 The annual meeting of the Authority shall be held in public at the Town Hall, Port St Mary at 6.00 p.m. on the day of the first ordinary meeting of the Authority in the month of May. No business shall be transacted at the annual meeting save for business provided for in Standing Order 3.1 or required by or under a statutory enactment to be transacted at the annual meeting of a local authority.
- 1.2 The Ordinary meetings of the Authority shall be held at the Town Hall, Port St Mary, on the Fourth Wednesday and when necessary on the Second Wednesday of each month or on such other day or days as may be decided by resolution of the Authority. The exception to this is the month of December when the Authority will meet only on the Second Wednesday of that month
- 1.3 All ordinary and extraordinary meetings of the Authority for the transaction of general business shall commence at 6.30 p.m. unless notice to the contrary is given by the Clerk. A meeting shall close no later than 9.00 p.m. unless decided otherwise by resolution of the Authority. Consideration of any business not transacted shall be adjourned to a time fixed by the Chairman at the time the meeting is adjourned or, if the Chairman does not fix a time, to the next ordinary meeting of the Authority.
- 1.4 An extraordinary meeting of the Authority may be called at any time by the Chairman or by the Clerk.
- 1.5 If the Chairman refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the Authority after receiving a requisition for that purpose, signed by at least one third of the whole number of members of the Authority, or if without so refusing the Chairman does not call an extraordinary meeting within seven clear days after the requisition has been presented to him, then at least one third of the whole number of members of the Authority may forthwith call such a meeting.
- 1.6 Any requisition for an extraordinary meeting shall state the nature of the business to be transacted at such meeting and the same shall be specified in the notice of the meeting. No other business shall be transacted at such meeting.

#### 2. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

A notice of a meeting of the Authority, signed by the Clerk and specifying the business to be transacted, shall be sent to each member at least three clear days preceding the holding of an annual or ordinary meeting, and in the case of an extraordinary meeting shall be delivered with all possible despatch. A notice shall be left at or be sent by post to the usual place of abode of every member other than if a member gives notice in writing to the Clerk of some other address at which notice should be served. Any notice addressed to a member and left at or sent by post to the appropriate address shall be deemed sufficient service of the notice. Want of service of a notice on

any member shall not affect the validity of a meeting.

Any notice of a meeting of the Authority shall be served electronically on a member by transmitting it to such electronic mail address as the member has provided to the Authority except where the member has elected not to accept such means of delivery and notified the Clerk in writing accordingly. Such notice shall be signed by the Clerk and specifying the business to be transacted, shall be sent to each member at least three clear days preceding the holding of an annual or ordinary meeting, and in the case of an extraordinary meeting shall be delivered with all possible despatch.

#### 3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND COMMITTEES

- 3.1 The election of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Authority, and any other appointments necessary for the ensuing year shall take place at the annual meeting or, in the case of any vacancy arising during the year, at the next ordinary meeting after such vacancy occurs.
- 3.2 The current Chairman shall occupy the chair and conduct the proceedings necessary for the election of a new Chairman of the Authority.

At such election of Chairman, should there be more than one nomination, voting shall be by secret ballot, each member placing a mark, opposite the nominated person for whom he/she wishes to record his/her vote.

- 3.3 The Chairman so elected shall then proceed to the election of:
  - (a) the Vice-Chairman, and
  - (b) any other appointments, including any committees of the Authority. Should the situation arise where two candidates remain and both receive the same number of votes, the result shall be determined by the drawing of straws. The candidate who draws the longest straw shall be deemed to be the winner.

In any case where there are more nominations than vacancies such election shall be by ballot as prescribed in Standing Order 3.2 above. In the event of any candidate failing to receive a majority of the votes of the members present, the candidate with the least number of votes shall be excluded wherever possible. Fresh nominations shall be sought if equality of votes prevents the majority election of a member after two ballots.

#### 4. CHAIRING OF MEETINGS

The Chairman of the Authority shall preside, if present, at all meetings of the Authority, in the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall preside, if present, and in the event of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman being absent, another member chosen by the members present shall preside. Any power of the Chairman in relation to the conduct of a meeting may be exercised by the person presiding at that particular meeting.

#### 5. QUORUM

- 5.1 Subject to Standing Order 5.4, no business shall be transacted at a meeting of the Authority unless more than one half of the whole number of the members of the Authority are present at the time set for the commencement of the meeting or within 15 minutes thereafter.
- Where more than one-third of the members of a local authority become disqualified at the same time, until the number of members in office is increased to not less than two-thirds of the whole number of members of the authority, the quorum of the authority shall be determined by reference

to the number of members of the authority remaining qualified instead of by reference to the whole number of members of the authority.

- 5.3 If there is not a quorum present at any stage of a meeting of the Authority, the meeting shall stand adjourned. Consideration of any business not transacted shall be adjourned to a time fixed by the Chairman at the time the meeting is adjourned or, if the Chairman does not fix a time, to the next ordinary meeting of the Authority.
- 5.4 In respect of any committee composed of fewer than all of the members of the Authority then no business shall be transacted at that meeting of the committee unless more than one half of the whole number of the members of the Authority are present. Thus a majority vote of one third of the whole number of the members of the Authority results in recommendations as to a proposed course of action which may be submitted to the Authority for consideration.
- 5.5 Where a question is put pursuant to Standing Order 13.3 that the minutes of the last preceding ordinary meeting or of an intermediate extraordinary meeting of the Authority be signed as a correct record, the quorum to approve such action shall be more than one half of the whole number of the members of the Authority present at the meeting who had also been in attendance at the meeting to which the minutes in question relate. A member present at the meeting who had not also been in attendance at the meeting to which the minutes in question relate may not vote in relation to such a question.

#### 6. VALIDITY OF PROCEEDINGS

The proceedings of the Authority shall not be invalidated by any vacancy among the number of the Authority or by any defect in the election or qualification of any member.

#### 7. ATTENDANCE OF THE CLERK

With the exception of absence through illness or approved leave, emergency or any private session of the Authority where the nature of the business being transacted is that concerning the Clerk, the Clerk (or his/her nominated deputy) shall be present at all the meetings of the Authority.

#### 8. ATTENDANCE OF THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are entitled to attend public sessions of the meetings of the Authority. However, they are not entitled to attend proceedings considered in private; these cover private sessions of the Authority and the meetings of committees.

If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings of a Meeting the chairman will warn them. If interruption continues the chairman shall order their removal from the Authority's chamber.

#### 9. RECORD OF ATTENDANCES

- 9.1 The Clerk shall record the members present at a meeting of the Authority and shall also note in the minutes the time at which any member leaves the meeting other than temporarily.
- 9.2 The Clerk shall cause an annual report of the attendance at meetings of the Authority to be prepared on an annual basis for the year ending on the last day of March in each year and to be made public as soon as possible thereafter and in any event during the month of April.

#### 10. MAJORITY

Subject to the provisions of any enactment, all questions coming or arising before the Authority shall be decided by a majority of the members present and voting thereon at a meeting of the

Authority.

10.2 Subject to those provisions, the person presiding as Chairman at the meeting shall have a second or casting vote in the case of an equality of votes, and shall be free to cast that vote as he or she thinks fit and not be under any obligation, real or perceived, to vote for maintaining the status quo.

#### 11. VOTING

- 11.1 The mode of voting at meetings of the Authority shall be at the discretion of the Chairman except as provided for in Standing Order 3.
- Only those members who are present when the question is put from the Chair shall be entitled to vote.
- 11.3 Every member present when the question is put from the Chair shall be required to record his/her vote for, against or in abstention.
- 11.4 The voting on any question shall be recorded so as to show whether each member present voted for, against or abstained.

#### 12. INTERIM DECISION MAKING

- 12.1 In the event that a question for determination by the Authority or a committee requires, in the opinion of the Chairman or the Clerk, a resolution of the Authority or committee before the next ordinary meeting, such question may be put to members by electronic mail.
- 12.2 Where a member has made an election under Standing Order 2.2 not to accept delivery of notice by electronic mail, such question shall instead be put to the relevant member by telephone or in person.
- 12.3 Every member shall be requested to respond to the Clerk and record his/her interim vote for, against or in abstention in respect of the question put.
- 12.4 Upon the receipt of the interim votes of more than one half of the whole number of the members of the Authority or the committee for or against in respect of the question put, the matter shall be treated as decided and the Authority may act in reliance on such interim decision.
- 12.5 At the next ordinary meeting of the Authority or meeting of the committee, the question shall be put to the members present that the outcome of the interim vote be ratified. Members present at the meeting who took part in the interim decision may not change their interim vote. There shall be a presumption that the interim vote be ratified, notwithstanding any change in the composition of the Authority between the interim vote and the meeting at which the question is put. The question shall be put without debate, save as to the accuracy of the interim voting and decision recorded.

#### 13. MINUTES OF MEETINGS

- Minutes of proceedings of every meeting of the Authority shall be drawn up and recorded by the Clerk or some other authorised officer.
- 13.2 A copy of the minutes of the last preceding ordinary meeting and of intermediate extraordinary meetings of the Authority shall be sent to each member with the notice convening the ordinary meeting.
- 13.3 At such ordinary meeting the Chairman shall put the questions that such minutes be signed as a Page 5 of 22

- correct record. No motion or discussion shall take place upon the minutes, except upon their accuracy, and any question on their accuracy shall be raised by motion.
- 13.4 If no such question is raised, or if it is raised, then as soon as it has been disposed of, the Chairman shall sign the minutes or the corrected minutes as the case may be, and shall initial each consecutively numbered leaf comprising those minutes.

#### 14. APPLICATION OF STANDING ORDERS TO COMMITTEES

- 14.1 Standing Orders 5 to 13 and 32 shall apply in relation to a committee of the Authority as they apply in relation to the Authority.
- 14.2 Until the contrary is proved, where a minute of any meeting of any such committee or subcommittee has been made and signed in accordance with Standing Order 13 as applied by this
  Standing Order 14, the committee shall be deemed to have been duly constituted and to have had
  power to deal with the matters referred to in the minute, the meeting shall be deemed to have been
  duly convened and held and the members present at the meeting shall be deemed to have been
  duly qualified.

#### 15. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

- 15.1 All agendas, reports, and other documents and all proceedings of committees and of the Authority shall be public unless the Clerk in consultation with the Chairman decides that any item should be treated as confidential. The grounds for such decision must be one of the following:
  - (a) that the subject is one of pending litigation or negotiation in which the Authority's position could be prejudiced by premature publication; or
  - (b) that publication would be injurious to any public or private interest; or
  - (c) that the matter is one of commercial sensitivity.
- 15.2 In the event that the Clerk in consultation with the Chairman decides that any item should be treated as confidential under Standing Order 15.1, such agendas, reports or other documents shall be circulated to all members of the Authority marked "Private and Confidential". The issue shall be made public as soon as practicable after the grounds for keeping it private no longer apply.
- 15.3 Any question arising at a meeting of a committee or of the Authority, as to the appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary, superannuation, conditions of service, job performance or professional conduct of any person employed by the Authority, shall not be the subject of a public minute or report to be discussed in public unless and or until the Authority has otherwise determined.
- 15.4 All matters dealt with or brought before the Authority when sitting in private shall be treated as strictly confidential and, unless otherwise determined by the Authority, shall not be disclosed to any person outside the Authority.
- 15.5 All or any statements regarding the affairs of the Authority made for or on behalf of the Authority by a member, members or officer of the Authority to the media or any other third party, be they verbal or written, shall only be made with the consent of the Authority.
- 15.6 All or any statements regarding the affairs of the Authority made in a personal capacity by a member, members or officer of the Authority to the media or any other third party, be they verbal or written, shall make clear that they are made in a personal capacity and not for or on behalf of the Authority and shall be subject to the obligations of confidentiality provided for in these

Standing Orders and otherwise in law.

#### 16. ORDER OF BUSINESS

- 16.1 Except as provided for by Standing Order 16.2, the order of business at every meeting of the Authority shall be transacted in the following order:
  - (a) choice of a person to preside if the Chairman or Vice-Chairman be absent,
  - (b) any business required by statute to be done,
  - (c) to approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the previous ordinary meeting and of any intermediate extraordinary meeting or meetings,
  - (d) business arising out of such minutes if not referred to in the minutes of any committee,
  - (e) business adjourned from a previous meeting,
  - (f) to ratify any interim decision made in accordance with Standing Order 12,
  - (g) consideration of reports and correspondence appearing on the agenda,
  - (h) to answer questions asked under Standing Order 17,
  - (i) motions in the order in which notice has been received,
  - (j) other business, if any, authorised by the Chairman for consideration,
  - (k) Chairman's announcements,
- Business falling under items (a), (b), (c) or (d) of Standing Order 16.1 shall not be displaced, but subject thereto the foregoing order of business may be varied:
  - (a) at the discretion of the Chairman; or
  - (b) by a resolution duly moved and seconded and passed on a motion which shall be moved and put without discussion.
- any business, which the Authority decided shall be taken in private, shall be postponed until the conclusion of the other business and then be transacted in private.

#### 17. QUESTIONS

- 17.1 A member of the Authority may ask the Chairman or the chairman of a committee any question upon an item on the agenda or the report of a committee when that item is under consideration by the Authority.
- 17.2 A member of the Authority may:
  - (a) if one clear day's notice in writing has been given to the Clerk ask the Chairman or the Chairman of any committee any question on any matter in relation to which the Authority has powers or duties or which affects the district, or
  - (b) with the permission of the Chairman put to him or the Chairman of any committee any questions relating to urgent business, of which such notice has not been given but a copy of any such question shall, if possible, be delivered to the Clerk not later than five o'clock

in the afternoon of the day of the meeting.

- 17.3 Every question shall be put and answered without discussion but the person to whom a question has been put may decline to answer.
- 17.4 An answer may take the form of:
  - (a) a direct oral answer; or
  - (b) where the desired information is contained in a publication of the Authority, a reference to that publication; or
  - (c) where the reply to the question cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated to members of the Authority.

#### 18. NOTICES OF MOTION

- Notices of every motion relating to any new subject or matter not already before the Authority, other than a motion under Standing Order 19, shall be given in writing at the ordinary meeting preceding the one at which it is intended to bring it forward or it shall be delivered in writing, duly signed by the member giving the notice, at the office of the Clerk at least five clear days before the next meeting.
- Any notice delivered to the Clerk shall be dated and numbered by him, in the order in which it is received, and entered in a book that shall be open to inspection by any member of the Authority.
- 18.3 The Clerk shall set out in the summons for every meeting of the Authority any motion of which notice has been duly given in the order in which it was received, unless the member giving such notice intimated, in writing, when giving it, that he proposes to move it at some later meeting, or has since withdrawn it in writing.
- 18.4 If a motion thus set out in the summons be not moved either by a member who gave notice thereof or by some other member on his/her behalf it shall, unless postponed by consent of the Authority, be treated as withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice.
- 18.5 If the subject matter of any motion of which notice has been duly given comes within the province of any committee it shall, upon being moved and seconded, stand referred without discussion to such committee as the Authority may determine, for consideration and report.
- 18.6 Every motion shall be relevant to some matter in relation to which the Authority have powers or duties or which affects the district.
  - Provided that the Chairman may, if conducive to the despatch of business, allow the motion to be dealt with at the meeting at which it is brought forward.

#### 19. MOTIONS AND AMENDMENTS THAT MAY BE MOVED WITHOUT NOTICE

The following motions and amendments may be moved during a meeting without notice:

- (a) on the accuracy of the minutes,
- (b) for the precedence of any item of business specified in the notice,
- (c) for referring any business to a committee,
- (d) for appointing or deferring any business for consideration at a future meeting,

- (e) for the appointment of a committee or members thereof, occasioned by an item mentioned in the summons to the meeting,
- (f) for the adjournment of any meeting or debate,
- (g) for dealing with correspondence, reports and recommendations of committees or officers, or other documents and any consequent resolutions.
- (h) for amendments to any motion,
- (i) for hearing any application or evidence,
- (j) for appointing a chairman of the meeting at which the motion is made,
- (k) that the Chairman does leave the Chair for part or all of the meeting,
- (l) for the suspension of any specified Standing Order or Orders, in accordance with Standing Order 39,
- (m) that any specified business be transacted in private at a later stage in the meeting,
- (n) that the order of business at a meeting be varied under Standing Order 16.2(b) (Order of business),
- (o) for taking any business from the private business for consideration in public,
- (p) that a member named under Standing Order 26 (Improper conduct) be not further heard or do leave the meeting,
- (q) for leave to withdraw a motion before a vote has been taken, but not afterwards,
- (r) that a member be now heard,
- (s) that the question be now put,
- (t) to proceed with the next business,
- (u) authorising the sealing or other execution of documents,
- (v) inviting a member to remain under Standing Order 32 (Pecuniary interest),
- (w) that the Authority do now adjourn.

Provided that a motion moved and seconded under items (j) to (w) inclusive shall be put without debate.

#### 20. AMENDMENTS

- Amendments to any motion must be relevant to the motion and shall not have the effect of introducing a new proposal into or negating the motion before the Authority. Amendments shall be either:
  - (a) To refer a subject of debate to a committee for consideration (or reconsideration)
  - (b) To leave out words

- (c) To leave out words and insert or add others
- (d) To insert or add words
- When an amendment has been moved no second amendment shall be considered until the first is disposed of. Provided that the Chairman may permit two or more amendments to be discussed (but not voted on) together if circumstances suggest that this course would facilitate the proper conduct of the Authority's business.
- 20.3 If such amendment is carried, it shall then be submitted as a substantive or original motion, upon which a further amendments may be moved.
- 20.4 If a first amendment is lost, further amendments to the original motion may be moved.

#### 21. RULES OF DEBATE FOR AUTHORITY MEETINGS

- A member when speaking shall address the Chairman. If two or more members wish to speak, the Chairman shall call on one to speak and the other or others to remain silent. Whilst a member is speaking the other members shall remain silent, unless raising a point of order or a personal explanation.
- A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and seconded, and unless notice has already been given in accordance with Standing Order 18 it shall, if required by the Chairman, be put into writing and handed to the Chairman before it is further discussed or put to the meeting.
- A member when seconding a motion or amendment may declare his/her intention to reserve his/her speech until a later period in the debate.
- A member shall direct his/her speech to the question under discussion or to a personal explanation or to a point of order. No speech shall exceed 5 minutes, except by consent of the Authority.
- 21.5 A member may without discussion, subject to the consent of the Authority having been signified:
  - (a) alter a motion of which he has given notice, or
  - (b) with the further consent of his/her seconder alter a motion he has moved, if (in either case) the alteration is one which could be made as an amendment thereto.
- A motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent of his/her seconder and of the Authority, which shall be signified without discussion, and no member may speak upon it after the mover has asked permission for its withdrawal, unless such permission shall have been refused.
- 21.7 The mover of a motion has a right of reply at the close of the debate on the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote. If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion shall also have a right at the close of the debate on the amendment, and shall not otherwise speak on the amendment. The mover of the amendment shall have no right of reply to the debate on his/her amendment and no member shall speak on any subject after the same has been put to the vote.
- 21.8 When a motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved except the following:
  - (a) to amend the motion,
  - (b) to adjourn the meeting,

- (c) to adjourn the debate,
- (d) to proceed to the next business,
- (e) that the question be now put,
- (f) that a member be not further heard,
- (g) by the Chairman under Standing Order 26.2 (Improper conduct) that a member do leave the meeting,
- (h) a motion under Standing Order 19(m) that any specified business be transacted in private or Standing Order 26.8 (General disturbance) to exclude the public,
- (i) to postpone consideration of the motion,
- (i) that the subject under debate be referred to a committee.
- A member may move without comment at the conclusion of a speech of another member, "That the Authority proceed to the next business"; or That the question be now put"; "That the debate be now adjourned"; or "That the Authority do now adjourn", on the seconding of which the Chairman shall proceed as follows:
  - (a) on a motion to proceed to the next business; unless in his/her opinion the matter before the meeting has been insufficiently discussed, he shall first give the mover of the original motion a right of reply, and then put to the vote the motion to proceed to next business,
  - (b) on a motion that the question be now put; unless in his/her opinion the matter before the meeting has been insufficiently discussed, he shall first put to the vote the motion that the question be now put, and if it is passed then give the mover of the original motion his/her right of reply under Standing Order 21.7 before putting his/her motion to the vote,
  - (c) on a motion to adjourn the debate or the meeting, if in his/her opinion the matter before the meeting has not been sufficiently discussed and cannot be reasonably be sufficiently discussed on that occasion he shall put the adjournment motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original motion his/her right of reply on that occasion.
- 21.10 A member may raise a point of order or in personal explanation and shall be entitled to be heard forthwith. A point of order shall relate to an alleged breach of a Standing Order or statutory provision and the member shall specify the Standing Order or statutory provision and the way in which he considers it has been broken. A point of order may also relate to discussion of a motion that, if affirmed, would require the Authority or its officials to act *ultra vires*. A personal explanation shall be confined to some material part of a former speech by him that may appear to have been misunderstood in the present debate.
- 21.11 The ruling of the Chairman during debate or on the admissibility of a personal explanation shall not be open to discussion.

#### 22. INVOLVEMENT OF CLERK IN DEBATE

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Standing Orders, it shall be competent for the Clerk, with the consent of the Chairman, to make any statement in relation to any matter or thing connected with the public interest or public business and it shall be competent for any member speaking during the progress of a debate to address any question through the Chairman to the Clerk or other officer in attendance in relation to any matter or thing in connection with the subject under consideration.

#### 23. RESCISSION OF PRECEDING RESOLUTION

- 23.1 No motion to rescind any resolution passed within the preceding six months, and no motion or amendment to the same effect as one which has been rejected within the preceding six months, shall be proposed unless the notice thereof given in pursuance of Standing Order 18 bears the signature of more than one third of the whole number of members of the Authority.
- When any such motion or amendment has been disposed of by the Authority it shall not be open to any member to propose a similar motion or amendment during any meeting of the Authority within a further period of six months.

#### 24. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING OR DEBATE

- When any member has the right to speak, he may move the adjournment of the meeting or the debate if he confines his/her observations to the matter of adjournment. A member moving an adjournment under this order may be heard in support for not more than five minutes: and one other member may be heard in opposition similarly before the motion is put to the vote without further debate.
- 24.2 An amendment to a motion to adjourn may be moved if it relates to only the question of time.

#### 25. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE

- 25.1 All correspondence for consideration by the Authority shall be submitted to the Clerk.
- Any correspondence received later than three clear days prior to the day of an ordinary meeting shall not be considered at such meeting, unless such correspondence specifically requires a reply before the next ordinary meeting.
- 25.3 The provisions of Standing Order 25.2 shall not prevent the Chairman of the Authority from ruling on whether or not to consider any late item of correspondence.

#### 26. IMPROPER CONDUCT

- If at a meeting any member of the Authority who, in the opinion of the Chairman, misconducts himself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the chair, or by behaving irregularly, improperly, or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of the Authority, the Chairman or any other member may move "That the member named be not further heard", and the notice if seconded shall be put and determined without discussion.
- 26.2 If the member named continues to act improperly after a motion under Standing Order 26.1 has been carried, the Chairman shall either:
  - a) move "That the member named do leave the meeting" (in which case the motion shall be put and determined without seconding and without discussion, and if such motion is carried the member named shall be under a duty to withdraw from the meeting), or
  - b) adjourn the meeting of the Authority for such period as he in his/her discretion shall consider expedient.
- 26.3 If the Chairman rules that language used by a member ought to be withdrawn it shall be the duty of that member to withdraw it.
- Any member, members or officer of the Authority making comments of a derogatory or defamatory nature and refusing to withdraw such comments shall be solely responsible for the consequences of his/her or their actions.

- Any member, members or officer shall also be under a duty to desist from making derogatory or defamatory comments of a personal nature concerning other public bodies and/or elected representatives.
- 26.6 Members will at all times, to the exclusion of any personal disagreement, accord fellow members of the Authority courtesy and respect.
- 26.7 The Authority will at all times accord any member of the Authority's staff present at the meeting similar courtesy and respect as befits the relationship of employer and employee
- 26.8 In the event of general disturbance, which in the opinion of the Chairman renders the due and orderly despatch of business impossible, the Chairman in addition to any other powers vested in him may, without question put, adjourn the meeting of the Authority of such period as he in his/her discretion shall consider expedient.

#### 27. SEALING AND EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS

- 27.1 The common seal of the Authority shall not be affixed to any document, and no document shall be executed for or on behalf of the Authority under the hand of any person, unless the sealing or execution has been authorised by a resolution of the Authority or of a committee to which the Authority have delegated powers in this behalf, but a resolution of the Authority (or of a committee where that committee has the power) authorising the acceptance of any tender, the purchase, sale, letting, or taking of any property, the issue of any stock, the presentation of any petition, memorial, or address, the making of any rate or contract, or the doing of any other thing, shall be a sufficient authority for sealing or executing any document necessary to give effect to the resolution.
- Where a document is executed under seal, the seal shall be attested by the following persons present at the sealing: the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Authority or other member of the Authority, and the Clerk of the Authority. An entry of every document to which the seal has been affixed shall be made in a book provided and kept for that purpose.
- 27.3 Save where required by a statutory enactment to be executed under seal, a document may be executed for and on behalf of the Authority under the hand of the following persons: the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Authority or other member of the Authority, and the Clerk of the Authority.

#### 28. CUSTODY OF SEAL

The common seal of the Authority shall be kept in a safe place in the custody of the Clerk.

#### 29. AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

Any notice, order or other document, which the Authority is authorised to give, make or issue shall be signed by the Clerk on behalf of the Authority or by a person duly authorised in that behalf by the Clerk or the Authority.

#### 30. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

A member of the Authority may, for the purposes of his/her duty as such member but not otherwise, on application to the Clerk, inspect any document which has been considered by a committee or by the Authority, and if copies are available shall on request be supplied for the like purposes with a copy of such document.

Provided that a member shall not knowingly inspect and shall not call for a copy of any document

relating to a matter in which he is professionally interested or in which he has directly or indirectly any pecuniary interest within the meaning of sections 11 and 12 of the Local Government Act 1985.

- This Standing Order shall not preclude the Clerk or the advocate to the Authority from declining to allow inspection of any document that is or in the event of legal proceedings would be protected by privilege arising from the relationship of advocate and client.
- 30.3 All minutes and reports of a committee shall, as soon as the committee has concluded action on the matter to which such minutes or reports relate, be open for inspection by any member of the Authority.

#### 31. INSPECTION OF LANDS, PREMISES, ETC.

Unless specifically authorised to do so by the Authority or a committee, a member of the Authority shall not issue any order respecting any workings which are being carried out by or on behalf of the Authority or claim by virtue of his/her membership of the Authority any right to inspect or to enter upon any lands or premises which the Authority have the power or duty to inspect or enter.

#### 32. INTEREST OF MEMBERS IN CONTRACTS AND OTHER MATTERS

- 32.1 If any member of the Authority has any pecuniary interest direct or indirect within the meaning of Sections 11 and 12 of the Local Government Act 1985 (other than an indirect interest described in sub-section 14(4)-(6) thereof) in any contract, proposed contract, or other matter, that member must withdraw from the meeting while the contract, proposed contract, or other matter, is under consideration by the Authority (this also applies to matters before a sub-committee of the authority and a joint committee on which the authority is represented) unless:
  - (a) the disability to discuss that matter imposed upon him by the section has been removed by the Department of Infrastructure under section 14(1) thereof; or
  - (b) the contract, proposed contract, or other matter is under consideration by the Authority as part of the report of a committee and is not itself the subject of debate; or
  - (c) the Authority invites him to remain.

The presence of that member nevertheless counts towards a quorum of the body in question. A member shall have regard for all relevant guidance issued by the Department of Infrastructure in all matters of declaration of a pecuniary interest.

The pecuniary interests to which the above applies includes:

- (1) an indirect interest; or,
- (2) an interest of a spouse or civil partner of the member or officer; or,
- (3) an interest of a partner or employer of the member or officer; or
- (4) an interest of a company in which the member or officer (or his or her nominee) holds an equity share. A shareholding in a company which is worth less than £1,000 or less than 1% of the issued voting share capital, whichever is the less, does not prevent a member taking part in or voting on a matter, but must still be disclosed.

The following do NOT constitute a pecuniary interest:

(1) the fact that the member or officer is a ratepayer;

- (2) the fact that the member receives allowances or the officer receives remuneration from the Authority;
- (3) the fact that the member or officer is the tenant of one of the authority's houses, so long as the matter being discussed involves those houses generally rather than the specific house they are tenant of;
- (4) a connection with the matter which is so remote or insignificant that it cannot reasonably regarded as likely to influence the member or officer.
- A member of the Authority may make a general disclosure of a pecuniary interest by notifying the Clerk in writing, who is to enter it in a book which is open to inspection by any member of the authority. The entry of the interest in the Declaration of Interests Register means that the member does not have to declare their interest on every occasion (but this does not affect their obligation not to take part in a discussion or vote on the matter in question).

#### 33. INTEREST OF OFFICERS IN CONTRACTS

- 33.1 The Clerk shall report to a meeting of the Authority particulars of any notice given by an officer of the Authority under section 23 of the Local Government Act 1985, of a pecuniary interest whether direct or indirect in a contract. This does not preclude that officer from dealing with that matter on behalf of the Authority.
- In determining a pecuniary interest, whether direct or indirect, the definitions in Standing Order 32.1 above apply.

#### 34. MATTERS AFFECTING MEMBERS AND PERSONS EMPLOYED BY THE AUTHORITY

- 34.1 If any question arises at a meeting of the Authority (or of a committee thereof) as to the conduct of any member of the Authority, such question shall not be considered in public and shall not be the subject of discussion until the Authority is in private session.
- 34.2 If any question arises at a meeting of the Authority (or of a committee thereof) as to the appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary, superannuation or conditions of service, or as to the job performance or professional conduct of any person employed by the Authority, such question shall not be considered in public and shall not be the subject of discussion until the Authority is in private session.

#### 35. FILLING OF NEW POSTS AND VACANCIES

- No new office shall be created, nor any person be employed in addition to the Authority's establishment except with the agreement of the Authority.
- Where the creation of a new post is proposed or where a vacancy occurs the Authority shall decide:
  - in the case of a post which the authority is no required to fill by statute, whether the post is necessary
  - (b) in any case what shall be the terms and conditions of the post, and no steps shall be taken to fill the post until these decisions have been made.
- All vacancies to be filled in established posts of the Authority (not being posts at a weekly wage), unless they are to be filled by promotion or transfer, shall be advertised publicly unless the Authority determines otherwise.

Provided that where, a similar vacancy occurs, within six months of such a vacancy having been advertised, the Authority may appoint one of the former applicants.

A vacancy required to be advertised shall be advertised in one or more newspapers or electronic means appropriate to those persons who may be expected to possess the necessary qualifications for the post.

#### 36. VOTING ON APPOINTMENTS

Where there are more than two persons nominated for any position to be filled by the Authority, and of the votes given there is not a majority in favour of one person, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off the list and a fresh vote be taken, and so on until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person.

#### 37. CANVASSING OF AND RECOMMENDATIONS BY MEMBERS

- 37.1 Canvassing of members of the Authority or any committee of the Authority directly or indirectly for any appointment under the Authority shall disqualify the candidate concerned for that appointment. The purport of this Standing Order 37.1 shall be included in every advertisement inviting applications for appointments or in any form of application.
- A member of the Authority shall not solicit for any person any appointment under the Authority, and this Standing Order 37.2 shall not preclude a member from giving a written testimonial of a candidate's ability, experience, or character for submission to the Authority with an application for appointment.

#### 38. RELATIVES OF MEMBERS OR OFFICERS

- A candidate for any appointment under the Authority who knows that he is related to any member or officer of the Authority shall when making application shall disclose that relationship to the Clerk.
- A candidate who fails to disclose such a relationship shall be disqualified for the appointment and if appointed shall be liable to dismissal without notice. Every member and officer of the Authority shall disclose to the Clerk any relationship known to him to exist between him and any person whom he knows is a candidate for an appointment under the Authority. The Clerk shall report to the Authority or to the appropriate committee any such disclosure made to him.
- 38.3 The purport of this Standing Order shall be included in every advertisement inviting applications for appointments or in any form of application.
- For the purpose of this Standing Order persons shall be deemed to be related if they are husband and wife or civil partners or if either of them or the spouse or civil partner of either of them is the son or daughter or grandson or granddaughter or brother or sister or nephew or niece of the other, or of the spouse or civil partner of the other.

#### 39. SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

- 39.1 Subject to Standing Orders 10 and 39.2, any of the preceding Standing Orders may be suspended so far as regards any business at the meeting where such suspension is moved.
- 39.2 A motion to suspend Standing Orders shall not be moved without notice unless the meeting is deemed to be quorate subject to Standing Order 5.
- 39.3 Suspension or contravention of Standing Orders will be publicly recorded in a Register detailing

when and for what purpose.

#### 40. VARIATION AND REVOCATION OF STANDING ORDERS

- 40.1 Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Standing Orders shall when proposed and seconded stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the Authority. No new or revised Standing Order or any revocation of a Standing Order shall be valid or binding until confirmed by the Authority at the ordinary meeting held after the meeting at which it was approved.
- 40.2 These Standing Orders will be formally reviewed at least once a year during the month of April and otherwise as the Authority may resolve, to ensure they remain 'fit and proper' for their purpose.

#### 41. STANDING ORDERS TO BE GIVEN TO MEMBERS

A copy of these Standing Orders, and of such statutory provisions as regulate the proceedings and business of the Authority, shall be given to each member of the Authority by the Clerk upon delivery to him of the member's declaration of acceptance of office on the member being first elected to the Authority. Thereafter, following the making of any amendment to these Standing Orders, a full copy of them shall be given to each member of the Authority by the Clerk and made public as the Authority may resolve.

#### 42. COMMITTEES

- 42.1 The Authority may by resolution at any time delegate to a committee any matter not coming within the special area of responsibility of any existing committee.
- Every committee shall, before proceeding to any other business, at its first meeting and at any time thereafter when there is a vacancy in the role of Chairman, elect a Chairman.
- 42.3 In the absence from a meeting of the Chairman (and Vice-Chairman if elected), a Chairman for that meeting may be appointed.
- The areas of special responsibility of each committee shall be as set out in the resolutions of the Authority constituting such committee.
- 42.5 Each respective committee may be given delegated authority at the discretion of the Authority for day-to-day matters coming within each respective special area of responsibility. It shall be the duty of every committee to liaise as necessary with the Clerk or any other designated official in dealing with delegated matters and in advising and informing the Authority. It will be usual practice for the Clerk to be present at and keep minutes of any committee meeting. All agendas, reports and other documents and all proceedings of committees shall be treated as confidential unless and until they become public in the ordinary course of the Authority's business
- 42.6 Questions as to the extent and nature of delegated authority to be given to committees and to the Clerk or any other designated official will be decided by the Authority from time to time. Orders or instructions to be given to an official of the Authority in relation to any matter shall be conveyed only by the Clerk or in his/her absence by any other designated official.

#### 43. SPECIAL MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

The Chairman of a committee or the Chairman of the Authority may call a special meeting of a committee at any time. A special meeting may also be called on the requisition of three members of a committee, delivered in writing to the Clerk. The summons to the special meeting shall set out the

business to be considered thereat, and no business other than that set out in the summons shall be considered at that meeting.

#### 44. INTERPRETATION

- 44.1 The decision of the Chairman as to the construction or application of any of these Standing Orders, or as to any proceedings of the Authority, shall not be challenged at any meeting of the Authority, unless on a point of law.
- These Standing Orders will be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of the relevant statutory enactments. Where there is a conflict of interpretation between these Standing Orders and the relevant statutory enactment, the statutory enactment will take precedence. All references are to the law and exclusive jurisdiction of the Isle of Man.
- 44.3 The term "clear days" used in these Standing Orders shall have the meaning that the dates to and from which time is reckoned shall be excluded from the calculation. For example, where these Standing Orders call for three clear days' notice prior to a meeting taking place on a Wednesday, notice shall validly have been given if delivered in accordance with these Standing Orders on the preceding Saturday, but shall be late if delivered on the preceding Sunday.
- Where the term "Chairman" is used in these Standing Orders, the term shall be taken to refer to the Chairman of the Authority, unless inconsistent with the context.

Executed for and on behalf of the Port St Mary Commissioners at a meeting of the Authority held this 25th day of September 2024

Chairman

Bhilliams mbe

Clerk



# PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS STANDING ORDERS FOR THE MAKING OF CONTRACTS

WITH EFFECT FROM 25<sup>TH</sup> SEPTEMBER 2024

### PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS STANDING ORDERS ON THE MAKING OF CONTRACTS

In exercise of the powers conferred on the Port St Mary Commissioners (the "Authority") by Section 27(3) of the Local Government Act 1985, and of all other powers enabling it in that behalf, the following Standing Orders are hereby made:

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### **APPLICATION**

- 1. These Standing Orders shall apply to the making of contracts by the Authority, or on its behalf, for the supply of:
  - (a) goods or materials which have to be specially made and are likely to cost more than £500;
  - (b) for the execution of works; and
  - (c) the provision of a repetitive service e.g. cleaning contracts

#### INVITATION OF TENDERS

- 2. (1) Subject to the provisions of Standing Orders 2(2) and 2(3) and Standing Order 3 below, before seeking to make any contract the Authority shall cause appropriate public notice to be placed in a newspaper circulating in the Island and/or a trade journal or electronic bulletin giving not less than 14 days' notice of the intended contract and inviting tenders therefore by a fixed date and time.
  - (2) In the case of a contract for capital works (see Standing Order 13 below), the public notice given under Standing Order 2(1) above may invite any contractor interested in tendering for the work to submit his/her name to the authority and the Authority may then proceed to request tenders from contractors selected from the list of those responding to the notice.
  - (3) The Authority may, by resolution, exempt any contract from the provisions of paragraph (1) where the authority is satisfied that the exemption is justified by special circumstances.
  - 3. Notwithstanding the provisions of Standing Order 2(1) above:
    - (a) Tenders for a contract for the execution of works estimated to cost between £3,000.00 and £12,000.00 may be sought from not fewer than three Accredited contractors without public notice inviting tenders.
    - (b) A contract for emergency works or a contract estimated to cost less than £3,000.00 may be sought or negotiated directly with an Accredited contractor, except that the circumstances of any emergency contract exceeding £500.00 in cost shall be reported to the Authority.

For the purposes of this Standing Order 3, "Accredited" means accredited under the Construction Isle of Man Accredited Scheme administered by the Isle of Man Construction Federation.

#### **TENDERS**

- 4. Tenders shall be required to be forwarded to the Clerk in plain envelopes marked "TENDER". Any tender received after the date and time fixed for receipt shall not be considered.
- 5. Tenders shall be opened after the fixed date and time for receipt at a time set by the Clerk in the Page 20 of 22

- presence of the Chairman or Vice-Chairman or an appropriate member of the Authority.
- 6. Where the Authority decides to accept a tender other than the lowest, the reasons for such action shall be specified in the minutes of the meeting at which the Authority makes that decision.
- 7. Where the Authority decides to reject a tender, the reason for such rejection shall be specified in the minutes of the meeting at which the Authority makes that decision.

#### **CONTRACTS**

- 8. All written contracts must provide for damages for default by the contractor and for possible cancellation in the case of bribery.
- 9. All written contracts must in all respects be construed and operate as Isle of Man contracts and shall be interpreted in accordance with Isle of Man law.
- 10. Payments on account to contractors shall be made on a certificate issued by an authorised officer of the Authority which shall show the total amount of the contract, the value of the work executed to date, retention money, amounts paid to date and the amounts now certified.
- 11. Every significant variation on a contract for the execution of works shall be authorised in writing by an authorised officer of the Authority subject to the approval of the Authority. Variations which will result in the amount of the accepted tender being exceeded shall, as soon as possible, be reported to the Authority and, except where unavoidable in the Authority's interest, no expenditure shall be incurred in respect of such variations without the approval of the Authority.

#### SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

- 12. (1) Subject to Standing Order 12(2), any of the preceding Standing Orders may be suspended so far as regards any contract where the Authority is satisfied that the suspension is justified by special circumstances.
  - (2) Standing Orders shall not be suspended without notice unless at least two-thirds of the whole number of the members of the Authority support such suspension.

#### **PART II - CAPITAL SCHEMES**

#### **APPLICATION**

13. In addition to the foregoing provisions in Part I, this Part shall have effect in regard to any contract for the execution of works, which will form the subject of a borrowing petition to the Department of Infrastructure.

This Part is applicable to all capital schemes, including building, engineering and other projects (including but not limited to the leasing or hire purchase of vehicles, operational or administrative equipment, which are wholly or partially funded or underwritten by central government.

#### PRE-PETITIONING PROCEDURES

14. The Department of Infrastructure's recommended pre-petitioning procedures must be observed.

#### **CONTRACTS**

15. An appropriate standard form building or engineering contract must be used and every clause completed or deleted as applicable.

- 16. Where the contract provides for increases in the cost of labour and materials, a schedule of the price of labour, materials and goods must be completed. The contract must state if this schedule is not completed fluctuations will not be allowed.
- 17. Provisional sums should be kept to a minimum and wherever reasonably possible, all items should be written into the specification.

#### ADDITIONS AND VARIATIONS

- 18. Any significant additions and variations to the contract must be approved and minuted by the Authority and written instructions given to the Authority's architect /supervising professional for the project.
- 19. Minutes of progress and/or site meetings must be formally recorded and presented to the Authority by the architect *I* supervising professional.

#### PART III - DELEGATED PURCHASING POWERS

Where items require to be purchased for the day to day administrative functioning of the authority and which are not otherwise governed by the provisions of Part I of these Standing Orders, then the Authority may sanction from time to time a delegated purchasing authority to the Clerk, or other officer, as it see fit, to a maximum limit of £500. The terms of delegated purchasing power are to be notified either by an approved motion of the Authority or as part of a job specification approved by the Authority for the role of Clerk or other named officer.

#### PART IV - SUPPLEMENTAL

#### VARIATION AND REVOCATION OF STANDING ORDERS

- 20. (1) Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Standing Orders shall when proposed and seconded stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the Authority.
  - (2) These Standing Orders will be formally reviewed at least once a year during the month of April and otherwise as the Authority may resolve, to ensure they remain 'fit and proper' for their purpose.

#### STANDING ORDERS TO BE GIVEN TO MEMBERS

A copy of these Standing Orders shall be given to each member of the Authority by the Clerk upon delivery to him of the member's declaration of acceptance of office on the member being first elected to the Authority. Thereafter, following any the making of any amendment to these Standing Orders, a full copy of them shall be given to each member of the Authority by the Clerk and made public as the Authority may resolve.

Executed for and on behalf of the Port St Mary Commissioners at a meeting of the Authority held this  $25^{\text{th}}$  day of September 2024

BDUllans mbe

airman

Clerk

#### **PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS**

#### **BANK MANDATES**

Any required amendments to the Bank Mandates are to be approved and the mandates signed.

#### Signatories required;

Chairman Vice Chairman Clerk

#### **PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS**

#### **BOARD MISSION STATEMENT**

## PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS MISSION STATEMENT

Updated – July 2024

#### **MISSION STATEMENT**

To support our community and businesses. To carry out the Board's statutory obligations in a fit and proper manner.

#### (1) <u>SERVICES/DUTIES</u>

Function	DOI expected level of service	PSMC expected level of service
Public information and advice	Point of contact for information on local and central government matters.	To be available to provide advice and information through the public counter, written correspondence, telephone, email or social media. Responses where required to be issued within 5 working days.
		To act as a Tourist Information point, providing transport information and assistance as and when required.
Refuse collection	Collection of household and commercial waste; administration of civic amenity sites; recycling.	Domestic & commercial refuse collection to be carried out weekly.  Financially support the Southern Civic Amenity Site through parish contributions.  Support the Department of Infrastructure in the provision of recycle bring banks at 3 locations throughout the port.
Litter	Local authorities may designate a Litter Officer to	Public litter bins to be emptied at least twice weekly (more if required).  Current stock of public litter bins is 53.

enforce the Litter Act 1972. Some authorities also provide and empty litter bins.  Street- lighting  Provision and lighting  maintenance of street lighting.  Current stock consists of 263 lights and 9 clocks. Stock has been audited and is jointly maintained with Manx Utilities.  Financial provision has been made to replace 10 columns per year.  Environment al health  legislation relating to environmental health, including statutory  Act 1972. Some authorities also provide and empty litter bins.  Current stock consists of 263 lights and 9 clocks. Stock has been audited and is jointly maintained with Manx Utilities.  Financial provision has been made to replace 10 columns per year.  All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
lighting maintenance of street lighting.  9 clocks. Stock has been audited and is jointly maintained with Manx Utilities.  Financial provision has been made to replace 10 columns per year.  Environment al health legislation relating to environmental health, including and provision has been made to replace 10 columns per year.  All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
lighting maintenance of street lighting.  9 clocks. Stock has been audited and is jointly maintained with Manx Utilities.  Financial provision has been made to replace 10 columns per year.  Environment al health legislation relating to environmental health, including and provision has been made to replace 10 columns per year.  All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
Environment Enforcing All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction relating to environmental health, including replace 10 columns per year.  All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
Environment Enforcing All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction relating to environmental health, including replace 10 columns per year.  All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
Environment al health legislation relating to environmental health, including legislation All of these functions are in the main undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
al health legislation undertaken on behalf of/in conjunction with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
relating to with Local Authorities by officers of the environmental health, including with Local Authorities by officers of the Department of Environment, Food and Agriculture.
environmental Department of Environment, Food and health, including Agriculture.
health, including Agriculture.
statutory
nuisances,
verminous
premises,
unsanitary and
unfit housing,
regulation of
flats, prevention
of overcrowding,
dangerous/ruinou
s buildings and
unsightly land4,
and unsanitary
drainage.
Public Provision and Public conveniences at The Quay and
conveniences   maintenance of   Town Hall to be available 7 days a
public toilets. week and cleaned Mon-Fri.
Portable toilet to be provided at Chapel
Beach for the summer season.
Planning Power to appeal To report all planning applications and
against a updates to the Board on a monthly
planning decision   basis and report back the outcome to
made within their the Planning & Building Control.

	district. Local authorities are also consulted on any designation of a conservation area or registration of a building affecting their district and on the preparation of the development plan for their	
	area.	
Parks, playgrounds and other leisure facilities	Provision of recreational and entertainment facilities, including parks and playgrounds.	23 footpaths to be cut at least 3 times per year. <i>Discussion required</i> .  Playpark is inspected and maintained on an annual basis. April to the end of October (weather dependant) to cut grass through the village every 3 weeks.  Maintain approx. 80 (including 58 memorial benches) on an annual basis.  Provision and maintenance of the Town Hall and associated function rooms.  To provide beach cleaning facilities at Chapel Beach at least annually.
Control of dogs	Enforcing byelaws made by the Authority.	https://www.portstmary.gov.im/the- commissioners/bye-laws/
Housing	Provision of public sector housing in their districts. The Department of Infrastructure's	Provide support, assistance and regular maintenance in line with Government timeframes to all 122 social housing properties. Reported quarterly to the Board.

	Housing Division provides public sector housing in other districts. Sheltered accommodation for the elderly can also be provided. (Government meets 100% of the housing deficiency on the Island).	
Car parking	Provision of off- street and short- stay disc parking.	https://www.portstmary.gov.im/the- commissioners/bye-laws/
Street	As far as reasonably practicable, at all times highways should be kept clear of material that may endanger users of the highway, or affect the highway drainage.	To contract in (or where necessary provide in house) street cleaning services on a bi-weekly basis.  Discussion required.
Gully Emptying	Gullies should be running at all times. If the gully pot is empty, and any blockage cannot be cleared, this should be reported to the Department	To check and maintain gulleys (approx. 400) through the port at least twice a year, where necessary reporting any blockages which cannot be dealt with to the Department of Infrastructure.

Removal of Weeds	which will arrange to clear the blockage at its cost.  Weeds which may obstruct drainage, or are damaging or likely to damage the fabric of the highway should be removed as soon as reasonably	To carry out street weeding and spraying (using safe materials and in accordance with our spraying licence) throughout the port on a regular basis.
Maintenance of Highway verges	vegetation should not be allowed to grow to the extent so as to hinder the reasonable use of the highway by any person entitled to the use thereof, or so as to be a nuisance or injurious to the owner or occupier of premises adjacent to the highway.	Maintenance of verges to be carried out every 3 weeks (weather permitting) April to the end of October alongside the grass cutting.
Libraries and museums	Provision of public libraries and museums.	Annual donation made to the mobile library.
Anti-Social Behaviour	Enforcing Byelaws made by the authority to	Being dealt with under new byelaws being drafted.

Trees and	deal with various types of antisocial behaviours within the Local Authority area such as excessive noise nuisance or other behaviours which could cause danger or obstruction or give reasonable grounds for annoyance to any person.	To assist the Department of
high hedges	have the power to act in relation to complaints about trees and high hedges.	Infrastructure with trees and high hedges complaints utilising the following guidelines; <a href="https://www.gov.im/categories/planning-and-building-control/trees-and-high-hedges/">https://www.gov.im/categories/planning-and-building-control/trees-and-high-hedges/</a>
Removal of vehicles	Local authorities have the power to remove a vehicle from any road in its district if it is: (a) Parked in contravention of a traffic regulation order; (b) Causing an obstruction; or (c) Likely to cause danger The Authority also has powers to	To carry out the functions requested by the Department.

remove a vehicle
from any land if it
appears to be
abandoned.

#### (2) COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT

Strategy: To be open, clear, and honest in our communications, using all available methods to ensure that our community and businesses are informed

#### Goals

- Publication of Agendas (Public session and Private session) 7 days in advance on Port St Mary Commissioners website, Facebook and Public Notice boards;
- Update minutes on Port St Mary Commissioners website within 48 hours of ratification;
- Publication of biannual newsletter;
- Clearly publicise deadlines for letters to be received prior to meeting;
- Develop a clear communications flowchart for events, meetings and other activities
- To schedule Public meetings on request
- To agree and adhere to the 7 Principles of Public Life (Nolan Principles) at all times.

#### (3) ASSETS

#### **Strategy:**

- To commit to the obligations under The Port. St Mary Estate Act 1936
- To recognise that our assets are owned and managed by the Commissioners for and on behalf of the community we represent.
- We aim to manage our assets in a financially responsible way, using clear and accurate business plans to derive maximum benefits (financial or social/otherwise) for our community.

#### Goals

- Manage our assets to obtain maximum community or revenue benefit
- Create and maintain a register of and maintenance and renewal programme – status reported quarterly
- To develop community assets to improve opportunities within Port St Mary
  - (a) To improve the boat park facilities ON HOLD
  - (b) To update the playground equipment flooring scheduled for 2024

#### (4) HOUSING SERVICES

#### Strategy

 To provide appropriately designed, affordable housing on a means-tested basis for our community

#### Goals

To maintain an excellent standard of LA owned housing

- To manage our waiting list according to DoI regulations
- To look for opportunities to expand our housing offer
- To improve our inspection target of all our properties and gardens on an annual basis
- To manage a system of programmed maintenance
- To explore air source heat pumps as a source for heating properties
- To reduce rent arrears

#### (5) **ENVIRONMENT**

#### Strategy

• We aim to manage our activities in Port St Mary to endeavour to minimise any negative impacts on our environment

#### Goals

- To commission a DED energy efficiency survey of the Town Hall
- To reduce energy bills by 10%
- Support re-use and recycling
- Reduce household waste to the SITA plant
- To manage our green areas in an environmentally sensitive way
- To sensitively manage our open spaces and reduce the use of harmful chemicals
- To actively discourage the use of single use plastics when hiring PSMC premises
- To pursue carbon offsetting related to our activities
- To establish a Climate Change working group
- To encourage the Cycle to Work initiative
- Working with the UNESCO Biosphere to see how better we can improve and promote PSM

#### (6) FINANCE

#### Strategy

 We recognise that we make financial decisions on behalf of our ratepayers and residents, and we have a duty to spend money carefully and with due diligence

#### Goals

- To set a clear budget which will allow/enable the Commissioners to deliver their goals for developing Port St Mary
- To pursue outstanding rates arrears
- To pursue outstanding rent arrears in a responsible manner
- To ensure all staff employed by PSMC are paid at least the Manx Living Wage
- To aim to reduce rate borne expenditure by streamlining activities through:
  - (a) The use of structured rather than reactive activities with a well-planned maintenance system for our assets
- Increased use of technology (e.g. online payments and bookings)

#### (7) PLANNING

#### Strategy

 We will provide informed and justified opinion and local guidance on planning matters

#### Goals

- To ensure that Commissioners receive appropriate training and support in planning matters
- To liaise closely with central government regarding planning applications, refusals and appeals
- To fully support appropriate development and recognise the need to balance conserving the character of Port St Mary without compromising its future

#### (8) COMMUNITY

 To play a lead role in organising community events and supporting local community groups

#### Goals

- Remembrance Day Service
- Mona's Queen Service
- Village In Bloom
- Christmas Concert
- Civic Service
- Mobile Library support
- Southern Swimming Pool support
- Southern Civic Amenity Site support

To provide appropriate support to local clubs, such as (but not limited to)

- Port St Mary Rifle Club
- Port St Mary Golf Club
- Isle of Man Yacht Club
- Port St Mary Snooker Club

#### (9) GOVERNANCE

#### Strategy

• To ensure that Commissioners have access to information, training and support to make informed decisions

#### Goals

- To adhere to the Port St Mary Commissioners Standing Orders for the regulation and observance of procedure and business with respect to meetings of the authority and its committees with effect from 22<sup>nd</sup> May 2024
- To adhere to the Port St Mary Commissioners Standing Orders for the making of Contracts with effect from 22<sup>nd</sup> May 2024
- To build good working relationships with other local authorities
- To provide representatives to a number of other local boards, including but not limited to the below;
   Southern Civic Amenity Site

Southern Sheltered Housing Joint Board Southern Swimming Pool Southern Authorities Healthcare Trust Isle of Man Municipal Association Port St Mary & District Allotments Oversight Committee

- To ensure members conduct themselves in accordance with the Local Government Act, the Local Government Code of Conduct and our Standing Orders
- To support the physical and wellbeing of all our staff
- To continue to fulfil the administration contract for the Southern Sheltered Housing Joint Board (SSHJB) which is responsible for 178 residences spread over five complexes

## Annual Financial Statements and further information can be found on the following link;

https://www.portstmary.gov.im/the-commissioners/rates/

Asset list is currently being updated and will be included once received.

#### **PORT ST MARY COMMISSIONERS**

#### **Suspensions of Standing Orders on Meetings and on Contracts**

#### Year ended 31st March 2025

Date of Meeting	Reason
Private General Meeting	10.1 Standing Order Amendment to start time for ratification –
28 <sup>th</sup> August 2024	NME/COM proposed to suspend Standing Orders to discuss the matter further. All were in favour. Carried.
	A discussion was had around initiating a more user- friendly time. NME objected to the proposed 6pm start due to availability, other commitments and a concern of deterring the public from attending.
	Reasonings for and against were discussed. LVW raised a concern that by the end of the meetings those that have worked during the day especially, can struggle with concentration due to tiredness.
	NME/COM proposed to keep the start time at 7pm for meetings. BW, RG, DS, JT & LVW were against. The proposal failed.
	BW/RG proposed a 6.30pm start time is initiated to assist with the public attending. JT, DS, NME & COM were in favour. LVW was against. Carried.
	LVW proposed to suspend Standing Orders to continue the discussion further. There was no seconder, the proposal failed.

#### Port St Mary Commissioners Attendance record for Board meetings 2024/25

	24/04/2024	22/05/2024	22/05/2024	02/07/2024	24/07/2024	20/00/2024	25/00/2024	22/40/2024	04/42/2024	10/12/2024	20/04/2025	25/02/2025	27/02/2024	23/04/2024	Total attended	Pecentage attended
	24/04/2024	22/03/2024	22/03/2024	03/07/2024	24/07/2024	20/00/2024	25/09/2024	23/10/2024	04/12/2024	10/12/2024	29/01/2025	23/02/2023	21/03/2024	23/04/2024	atteriueu	atteriueu
Mr N McGregor Edwards	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	13	93
Mr A L Vaughan-Williams	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	0	1	1	0	1	1	11	79
Mrs C B Williams	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	14	100
Mrs R Gelling	0	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	0	1	0	10	71
C O'Meara	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	0	1	1	1	0	0	10	71
J Teare	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	13	93
D Scott	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	14	100

I certify that the above is a true record of the attendance	made by Commissioners at formal business of	of the Commissioners at the Village District of	of Port St Mar
Signed Chairman	Signed Clerk		